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From: Ed Claridge <ed.claridge@aucklandcouncil.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 14 April 2016 6:08 p.m.

To: Michael Belsham

Cc: Mike Stannard

Subject: Clarification Request - NZBC Code Clauses B1 and C6
Attachments: Auckland Council B1 and C6.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Michael,

Please find attached a letter outlining a request regarding clarification with ‘C6 and B1

Given the implications of what is being presented to Council for a ny r of osed designs i or
a number of very tall buidilngs we would request that the Minist this matter at § earligst

convinence. ,

Regards @
Ed Claridge | Principal Fire Engineer @
Ph (09) 353 9372 5%@)@) @

Auckland Council, 35 Graham Street, Auckla
Visit our website: www. aucklandcountibgavt.

S

CAUTION: T essaYes nd any attachme @wmaﬁm that may be confidential and may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED. If you are
not the in nt, ady use, disclogyre or this message or attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email

mes notify us i nd erase€ all copies of the message and attachments. We do not accept responsibility for any
viruses ed with our e sffécts our email may have on the recipient computer system or network. Any views expressed in

this emai 4nd may not necessarily reflect the views of Council.




Auckland [
Council iﬁﬁ

To Vauntwrs ¢ Tamah Makarsu

Ministry of Business, Innovation & Employment ( 14/04/2016
Level 5, 15 Stout Street,
Wellington 6143

Attention: Michael Belsham

Dear Michael, @

Clarification Request - NZBC Code Clauses B1 and C6 &
appli

tions that he
oV the applied,

, W clauses A
hat,C8 dormpliance cambe

and that in achieving complianst G8, that this als )
with B1. @ |
Statements ma " include

p grovides the fire requirements for a solution

@ s clause B1 to the extent required...”

a ' Ny

% lause C6 is the\appropfiate specific code clause to cite for compliance

- ith the m el .
$e.ouncil d ronfly accept this position and has specific concerns with
as'SUCh as post fire stability and how those requirements can be

eved by yoeeting only Clause C6. This is of particular concern when considering
ings.

a
ncil requests the Ministry to provide advice with regards to the relationship
een Code Clauses B1 and C6, specifically the question;

Does demonstrating compliance with NZBC Clause C6 also demonstrate
compliance with B1 without further assessment?

Council would welcome further discussion on this matter and would also suggest that
it would be appropriate for the Ministry to review the opinions expressed for the
specific projects when considering the above question. This may also be of benefit to
all parties to ensure that other associated aspects of code compliance are not
overlooked. Council would be happy to supply further evidence should this be
requested to support this request.




If you have any further queries regarding this matter, please don't hesitate to contact
the undersigned.

Yours faithfully

L
Ed Claridge

Principle Fire Engineer
ed.claridge@aucklandcouncil.govt.nz

@@ ; @®
o
7 &
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Out of Scope
From: Michael Belsham
Sent: Thursday, 14 April 2016 1:44 p.m.
To: Edwin Claridge
Subject: Practice Advisory - Fire Safety Tall Buildings.docx [UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: Practice Advisory - Fire Safety Tall Buildings.docx

Thought ’d let you see the guidance in its final draft form.




Fire Safety Design for Tall Buildings

Good fire safety design recognises additional measures together with
reliability and robustness of design features to allow for safe use of

tall buildings.

Purpose

To highlight the additional considerations in fire safety design for tall buildings w;;l {*’V

Acceptable Solutions, Verification Method C/VM2 or Specific Design. ,

Who's it for?

e Building owners or developers
s Architects

e Structural engineers

e Building consent authority
Fire Engineers

hthe advent of high-rise developments in Auckland City the following guidance is provided to

W
@; pplement the Verification Method C/VM2.

International best practice suggests that there is a range of specialist features that should be
considered for high-rise buildings, most of which are not described in C/VM2. Designers and BCA’s
should consider the issues that are unique to tall buildings when applying C/VM2 such that the safety
of the building has sufficient robustness to mitigate the fire risks of occupancy at height and to the

surrounding community.
Recent tall building fires in Australia and UAE demonstrate potential rapid fire spread and need for

robust and resilient buildings to safe guard the life of occupants, fire fighters and other property.
These buildings require sufficient features to withstand extreme events and have reliable fire safety

systems.




International Guidance

A useful reference for identifying appropriate fire safety
measures for high-rise buildings is SFPE’s Engineering Guide: Fire
Safety for Very Tall Buildings. The guide can be purchased from
the SFPE store website.

Recently updated draft amendment to B59999 recognises the
need for additional measures in tall buildings in the UK.

“However the increased demand on structural integrity, services,
fire safety systems, means of fire-fighting and evacuation
generated by buildings in excess of 50m high might mean that
specific evaluation of all fire safety provisions is needed using a
qualitative design review in accordance with BS 7974. This is to
determine whether the recommendations of BS9999 are
appropriate, or whether a full fire engineered solution is required”

Factors to Consider

the fire designs for high-rise buildings include:

The fire safety issues and the corresponding measures 5 " that mu@@d in

S

Fire Resistance and Robustness of Stru esiliency ok@m for tall buildings
pan

warrants additional consideration due to'the timeTequired for 0 acuation and
firefighter operations, as well as the ntigl impact that |Gtal onglabal collapse could have on

the Building Code. I1.
required in B1 be i

Fire Fig % ilities=Firefighti perations in tall buildings present a challenge for
the Ejre ce typically needsTo-f10y@ equipment vertically in the building. They often stage
on a floor bel yafire floor and utilize one or more stairwells to run hoses to the
flo ey might.need a i elp evacuate occupants with disabilities, and they can
@mes have p o%o munications as a result of the building materials and
gnstruction, Fok these related reasons, a variety of specific facilities to support fire service
Reputifised, including protected / hardened lifts to facilitate firefighter access

efuding evacuation of at risk populations. Redundant or more reliable water
protected lobbies, and so forth may need to be considered.

c/vma.

hased/Defend in Place Evacuation Design - A variety of evacuation strategies are possible for

I buildings, including staged evacuation, relocation and defend in place (refuge areas / floors),
and full simultaneous evacuation. To account for the time required to evacuate part or all of the
building, and / or the loss of a stairwell due to firefighting operations may require additional
egress capacity {more stairs, more exit width), require use of refuge areas / floors, allow for use
of lifts for evacuation by occupants, or some combination, to provide for reasonable means of
assuring the occupants can reach a place of safety.




Reliability of systems becomes a concern where reliance on
systems is critical to the safety strategy (e.g., emergency
power if lifts are used by occupants and/or fire service,
redundant firefighting water supplies / risers, etc.) and should
be addressed. Likewise, systems to facilitate situation
awareness are essential, for occupants and the fire service.

Fire spread by external fagades which contain combustible
materials (coatings, insulation, etc.} is a significant concern for
very tall buildings, as has been demonstrated by fires in
Australia, China, Dubai and elsewhere, and minimizing the
potential for internal smoke and fire spread through passive
and active means is essential to avoid such situations as the
MGM Grand Hotel fire in Las Vegas and other tall building fire
events.

Fire Engineering Brief (FEB)

building, the BCA should have regard to whethe
above. This should inform the BCA’s congide
approve the building consent.
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From: Michael Belsham

Sent:  Wednesday, 13 April 2016 4:36 p.m.

To: ‘Ed Claridge’

Subject: RE: Opinion for Risk Group SH [UNCLASSIFIED)

Stand your ground! He is clearly unsuitable to be involved.
The tall building comment is a concern. Please keep us informed. If the situation persists we will need to take action.

Just looking at s 9@2)a) and tall buildings actually kick in at 10 stoerys....

Kind Regards,

Michael Belsham
FIRE ENGINEER

Building System Performance Branch | Building Resources & Mark
Ministry of Business, Innovation & Employment

Level 5, 15 Stout Street, PO Box 1473, Wellington 6143

BUILDING
PERFORMANCE

T R F S Sty S

aucklandcouncil.govt.nz]}
4:30 p.m.

One of the responses included this

However | am interested as to s 9(2)(a) experience in the performance of high rise composite steel
concrete buildings in fully developed fire that would lead them to appoint him to provide the regulatory review for
the structural fire engineering components of the tower instead of the New Zealand expert in this area. From a
Google search on him, which is admittedly not necessarily the definitive word, his experience and expertise in high
rise buildings in fire looks similar to my own, with the exception that he does not appear to have been involved in
studying the behaviour of composite floor systems in fire and development of design procedures for these floors to
the extent that | have.



Notwithstanding the content, | have already gone back to them and questioned why a PS2 author who was
supposed to be independent of the design is now questioning councils discussion about who we are using
to undertake the regulatory review. He wasn't of course involved in the original distribution but quickly
became involved®©

AND, | have already had a denial about the MBIE stance on lall buildings. Apparently we have no right to
ask for more than the minimum of C/VM2 when it comes to tall buildings or mention the words ‘best

practice’

Regards

Ed Claridge | Principal Fire Engineer

Ph (09) 353 9372 | s %)@

Auckland Council, 35 Graham Street, Auckland
Visit our website: www.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz

From: Michael Belsham [mailto:Michael Belsham@mbie.govt.nz] @@

Sent: Wednesday, 13 April 2016 3:59 p.m.
To: Ed Claridge
<

Subject: RE: Opinion for Risk Group SH [UNCLASSIFIED]

Hmm your probably right however we are ‘obliged’ to offer the oti@ térnative path @
Kind Regards, @
Michael Belsham @ ’ : Eé

FIRE ENGINEER !

Building System Performance Branch
Ministry of Business, innovation &

Level 5, 15 Stout Street, PO Bo

&

BUILDING

~ Sent: Wednesday, 13 April 2016 3:54 p.m.
To: Michael Belsham
Subject: RE: Opinion for Risk Group SH [UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks, hopefully this is now being sorted. A good example of 4 different potential outcomes and 4
different views being expressed — perhaps!

As for the alternative solution part — that wouldn't have helped here?

Regards



Ed Claridge | Principal Fire Engineer

Ph (09) 353 9372 3 °@@

Auckland Council, 35 Graham Street, Auckland
Visit our website: www. aucklandcouncil.govt.nz

From: Michael Belsham [mailto: Michael.Belsham@mbie.govt.nz]
Sent: Tuesday, 12 April 2016 8:26 a.m.

. Tos s 92)(=)
Subject: Re: Opinion for Risk Group SH [UNCLASSIFIED]

s 8(2){a}

The documents do not restrict household unit to one level the figure is generic only.

C\AS1 does not regard any management systems as part of design as can't rely on door bei t closed. This

would need to be presented as an alternative solution.
Regards, ‘ ,

Michael Belsham~
Fire Engineer

On 12/04/2016, at 08:12, s 9(2)(a)

Hello Michael; Thanks for the below,
But the big thing the council officer is hayig with is that C/ jguie 1.1 only shows the
household units are single storey/level, so& iptgrprets that a ve a two level household

unit above a single level househgfguqi | ha shown hi ts from the commentary, (As
per e-mail chain below) wh % that a house@ ave multi levels but he always
ermitted to have a multi-level household unit

comes back to figure 1.
e In-tifls project.

Can you please co t o figure 1.1 and’
above anot u nit, as per

Im % at if the two nits where occupied by two separate family units the

) the units wauld be § and locked for security reasons, then there would be no

: %ﬂts. As stated in the scope in the report at first a family member
it

Granny Flat), but the home owner is future proofing the building by

WATBE living in the s
iaking two \\
one aboxt othex\

h the door locked.

a
g

;‘5 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

The information contained in this e-mail message and any attached files is confidential mformation. If you are not the intended recipient,
any use, refiance, dissemination, disclosure, or copying of this e-mail or any part of this e-mail or attached files is unauthonsed. if you
have received this e-mail in error, please notify us immediately by reply e-maii to sender and delete all copies.



From: Michael Belsham [mailto:Michael.Belsham@mbie.govt.nz
Sent: Friday, 8 April 2016 5:06 p.m. o
To:s%2)a)

Ce: Dennis Monastra <Dennis.Monastra@mbie.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Opinion for Risk Group SH [UNCLASSIFIED]

3 8(2)8)

The issue here is the connection between the two units. This creates an interdependence between
the two units i.e. to keep the door closed. '

I'd note 2.2.10 of C/AS2. The building is low rise however | don’t believe there is true independence
between the two units. If the fire door was removed then the building would be one household unit

else C/AS2 should be applied.

2.2.10 For low-rise buildings that have no
more than two levels (one household unit
above another), and where each household
unit has its own escape route that is
independent of all other household units,

and that contain only risk group SM, then

the requirements of risk group SH shall apply
(see C/ASI).

Kind Regards.

Michael Belsham
FIRE ENGINEER

Building System Performan
Ministry of Business, |

Level 5, 15 Stout &rexy

<image004.ip

f Business, nnovation and fmployment. This message

ded recipient. i you 8te not the

: D ensible {or domigry
ey otibied Please oo

: ovt.nz
e’ FW: Opinion for Risk Group SH

Hello Michael, The attached design has been presented to Auckland Council for building consent
and the officer is debating that the risk group should be SM, where | believe that this design fits with

a SH risk group.

Can you please read the attached fire report and give me your opinion on the risk group for this
building. '

As stated in the scope of the report the door connecting the two apartmentks is so the family
member who will be living in the new apartment can still have direct connect with their family. So at
first this is a granny flat and then at a later date when the family member passes on the flat wilt be



rented out and the door will be locked to become two separate household units with separate
independent means of escape.

| believe that the commentary clearly states that you can have one household unit above another
and each household unit can be more than one level, as per below.

As you can see in the plans at the rear of the fire report each household unit has its own
independent means of escape. '

<image005.png>

Thank you for your time and | may looking forward to hearing from you.

Regards @
5 9(2){a) Q % ‘\x

The information contained in this e-mail message and apy e not the intended recipient,
any use, reliance, dissemination, disclosure, or copying ; Atached files is unauthorised. If you
have received this e-mail in error, please noti ‘ atelyh delefe all copies.

sage are not necessarily those of the Ministry of Business,
“This message and any files transmitted with it are confidential

WWW.govt.nz - your guide to finding and using New Zealand government services

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of the Ministry of Business, Innovation
and Employment. This message and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use of
the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivery to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this message in error and that any use is strictly
prohibited. Please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachment from your computer.




Out of Scope

L e S
From: Ed Claridge <ed.claridge@aucklandcouncil.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 11 April 2017 2:12 p.m. »
To: John Gardiner; Michael Belsham
Cc: Brian Meacham
Subject: Tall buildings and C/VM2 compliance
Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear ali,

it has now been over a year since we raised the concerns regarding the suitabili
buildings. A number of high profile designs are reaching the end of the desi
working through the consent process. For many of these designs the Fir

provided a satisfactory mechanism of working through a number of the defictencie of CIVM2, ex&epiyj
instances where the FEB process has been abandoned. The reas the enail is to se '

of the advice MBIE provided to a number of designers around
(0

recall that there was a meeting on or around the 16" mar
were at that time involved with tall building designs to ad

document. ‘
Would you be able to confirm that this meeting i ny Enright al hat instruction/caution was
given with regards to the use of C/VM2 as a p pathwayAfer { igh of a tall building? In
currently dealing with the consent app of us storey.de turing only a single egress route at
pyovided to the |[E Practice Advisory 18 is as

L&V a
the top of the building, the responsg h “@
follows: N\

“Pursuant to S175(2)(a) oLt |E Practjt
Advisory 18 was pu ly 2016, DEE
seven months pri e, .

expectations of MBIE were and how these were conveyed
design/project management team as appropriate and where

e rel
‘ ﬂSQQQ’&% ified during consent processing.

CAUTION: This email message and any attachments contain information that may be confidential and may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED. if you are
not the intended recipient, any use, disclosure or copying of this message or attachments Is strictly prohibited. {f you have received this emall
message in error please notify us iImmediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We do not accept responsibility for any
viruses or similar carried with our email, or any effects our email may have on the recipient computer system or network. Any views expressed in
this email may be those of the individual sender and may not necessarily reflect the views of Council.
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From: Michael Belsham
Sent: Friday, 8 April 2016 1:21 p.m.
To: Edwin Claridge
Subject: FW: Fire Engineering Brief Guidance, Fire Engineering Brief FAQ {UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: AC2318 Fire protection policy EC Draft 4 - Meacham Comments.pdf
Ed,

Please find attached Brian's comments on the policy. I'll have mine with me too to go through on Monday.

Kind Regards, @ «
Michael Belsham ' @
FIRE ENGINEER %

&

Building System Performance Branch | Building Resources & Markets Mi of Busirless, Innovalign

recipient. If you are not the intended recipient or th Unsible for de intended recipient, be
advised that you have received this message in r ohibited. Please contact the

sender and delete the message and any %e your compuS;\\
-----Original Message----- \ ) S
From: Brian Meacham % @

Employment Level 5, 15 Stout Street, PO Box 1473, Wellington 6143%

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily fh t h nistry of B i ovation and

Employment. This message and any files transmitted with copfjdential an yse of the intended
to

Sent: Friday, 8 April 2016
To: Michael Beisha

Cc: Chris Rutledge; Wi

Subject: RE;.FF % i

Attache ¢ Ed's dra dmments. One question is whether he should add reference to the need for a
ine

qualified structuﬂx bo”assure compliance with €6 and B1.
Regards,
Br ial




Auckland |\
Council

Auckland Council Building Control | Private Bag 92300, Auckland 1142 |
www.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz | Ph 09 301 0101
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Purpose

This document provides guidance for building owners, designers and reviewers in regards to the
Council's role in consenting fire designs. It is intended that there is an understanding of Coungil's
expectations in respect to the process involved for fire designs.

The following documents must be read in conjunction with this policy
o Auckland Council's Producer Statement Policy AC2301 if producer statements are offered as

part of the design process; and
e MBIE Guidance requesting information about means of escape from fire isting buildings

(published December 2013)

Background

Council is responsible under the Building Act to issue building-
complies with the building code and ensuring that all builditg

accordance with the building consent for that work. To eng
at are findl.an
that the t authority

/5]
application must be accompanied by plans and ef-’s‘:‘
application must also be accompanied by any othe % nath
blish an ith" the Building Act and
the Act~T' uncils expectations and
esign will n 0 recognised processes and
5 of the Building Act, Ministry

reasonably requires.

For new and existing buildings fire design
meet the Building Code to the exten
requirements in the consent p th
guidance which includes dog ublished unde
guidance and Council Poligi€s:

S

Page 3 of 24 April 2016 AC2318 (DRAFT)



Documentation

The standard and guality of documentation to accompany a building consent application should
conform with Practice Note 22 as published by the Institute of Professional Engineers (IPENZ) and
the Ministry of Business Innovation and Employment (MBIE), as guidance under s.175 of the Building
Act 2004.

Excerpt from Practice Note 22:

responsibility for co-ordinating the design correctly rests with the consultants 12 ‘Qther design
disciplines. However, it is expected that the building consent documents (e, 4 o5, wall, door and
window schedules, and surface finish schedules) will be referred back to“thd i 3

undertake a secondary review of the documents for compliance with e enginsgli

All designs shall be accompanied with evidence or confi
provide the Council with confidence that the design

0 'the drawings
' other suitable

evidence would usually be provided by {

and specifications of the relevant discipline, ANRNZS
ﬁ“‘h&' er in conjun
disciplines but for non-complex work can.be ~Q’-« other ap ate

Page 4 of 24 Aprit 2016 AC2318 (DRAFT)



Overview

Compliance with the Building Code can be achieved by following one of two approved design
solutions: the Acceptable Solutions (AS) or the Verification Method (C/VM2). Where neither of these
solutions is appropriate, there is a third option, specific design, i.e. a design that does not follow either
the AS or C/VM2 inits entirety.

1. Design using the Acceptable Solutions

For both NEW BUILDINGS a design based on the Acceptable Solutions, must fully-Gomply with all of
the requirements of the Acceptable Solutions.

with the N

used. If this departure is performed or reviewed by a person
Statement Register and a PS1 or PS2 has been provided {0
lodged as an Acceptable Solution and checked for complian
modelling or other calculation method is used for hgrHZa

also be provided. This PS2 need only cover as
and fire duration calculation.

When submitting a design using the ta lutions Counci \@L ke a regulatory review,
request a PS1 orrequesta PS2.

2 Design using the V hod y

The Verification Method—(G{¥ idey fog ;Ehlgn scenarios; each scenario must be
considered and afi analysi$ ynd appropriate, in order to demonstrate compliance with
the Code clays :‘,p*- ti

iapee for parts of a building or for some’design‘’scenarios
lion requirements:

e%%er fust have the competence to perform the work, e.g. there is an

and suitably qualified fire engineer perform this work.
Designs undeftakeginaccordance with C/VM2 shall be subject to the Fire Engineering Brief process
and t apprdach ‘agreed in principle’ by the Council.

) wcharts for each of the 10 design scenarios are no longer present in the current
Verification Method and as such are not required to be provided in support of a FEB or
' design. However, they may remain a useful communication tool to describe the applicable
' design route for each design scenario
o All CVM2 designs must be completed and peer reviewed by a Council approved engineer.
Council approval of the specific reviewing engineer is obtained as part of the FEB process
Refer to Extent of Documentation
The extent and level of documentation provided to support a FEB will be dependent on the specific
nature of the project, the assessment methodology and approaches proposed. A FEB can range from
a simple ‘email or short letter outlining a minor deviation or to a substantial process and

documentation requirements depending on the projects complexity. Generally most FEB's will utilise
the C/VM2 design methodology requiring sufficient documentation to record and agree the location of -

Page 5 of 24 Apdl 2016 AC2318 (DRAFT)



the proposed design fires and other necessary C/VM2 criteria. Typically this would include a report
and drawings.

Good quality documentation aids the understanding of an FEB and will help to reduce the amount of
feedback and correspondence generated between stakeholders.

» Fire engineering brief (FEB) process section for further details

3. Specific Design @
Specific designs may be used where a building is not designed using@ cceptable S
or C/VM2. All applications involving specific designs are subject. g e FEB'rocess.

2 esigner
; ign it is
o& 0 lodgement of

When using specific design a suitably li i gi must perform the work
and the design reviewed by an engineer 2

strongly. recommended that designers communi
the Fire Engineering Brief.

Page 6 of 24 April 2016 AC2318 (DRAFT)



Fire Engineering Brief (FEB)

The FEB is a documented process that defines the scope of work for a fire engineering analysis and
the basis of the analysis. The purpose of this process is to identify and discuss at a high-level, the
fire-safety design, proposed methodology, input parameters, acceptance criteria and any other
relevant aspect of the design that may pose challenges to the approvals process.

The Ministry of Business, innovation and Employment's has produced guidance on the FEB that
should be read in conjunction with this Policy.

Fire engineers should refer to the International Fire Engineering Guidelines ¢ er recognised
standards® for further information regarding the content of an FEB.

Where a trial or preliminary design is presented within an FEB docume; on is provid
the correctness or result will not be checked and/or approved prior ldingyconsent sta n
-oyutcoms, but will not be su

prior approval before consent stage.

Extent of Documentation | -

The extent and level of documentation provided t will be h oY the specific
nature of the project, the assessment methodolog oaches pro can range from

a simple email or short letter outlining lation or subgtantial process and
documentation requirements depending.on %:e complexify>Generally fnost FEB's will utilise
the C/VM2 design methodology requiri ocu € and agree the location of

men
the proposed design fires and other.ne CIVM2 crite this would include a report
and drawings. ,
N ds e ndersta i Q B and will help to reduce the amount of

ders.

1 to ensure that Council are aware of the proposal and to
: ficers will review the FEB documentation to determine
peeri provided to commence the process and provide initial
fgqlate, Council officers will then consider whether a meeting is

: 3P information on the online form must be completed; if documentation is not available or
icable, applicants must note this on the form. If documentation is available, it must be attached
ubmitted with the online application.

Where confidence is obtained via production of good quality documentation and peer review
involvement, the extent of Council involvement can be limited. Once Council has been satisfied that
their involvement in the process can be reduced, this will be communicated to the designer and wider
stakeholder team. Council's expectations regarding closing out the FEB process and the expectations

' BS 7974 Application of fire safety engineering principies to the design of buildings ISOTR 13387-1:1999 Fire safety
engineering Part 1

Page 7 of 24 April 2016 , AC2318 (DRAFT)



of the peer reviewer to enable the Council to accept the FEB and any PS2 in good faith at the time of
consent will also then be confirmed.

Meeting location

if a meeting is required, it will normally be held at 35 Graham Street, Auckland; alternatively,
meetings may be held elsewhere by mutual agreement. If a meeting is not necessary, the FEB may
be conducted via email or other agreed process

If a meeting proceeds, it is preferable that all stakeholders attend; however, there is no requirement
for them to do so. Stakeholders are welcome to attend the meeting via teleph conferencing if
they are unable to attend the meeting.

Fees

Stakeholders include but are not limited to:
Council
NZ Fire Service

Fire engineer

Architect or designer

Building owner

Specialists (e.g. emergency lighting, wa

Auckland Councils Producer Stat
Insurance representative
Building management
Tenant

10:~ If the meetihg\ex
Qurly rate charde: {or the staff member in attendance. The cost of reviewing the
¢’ the meeti
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Section 112 Alterations to Existing Buildings

Section 112.1
A building consent authority (BCA) must not grant a building consent for the alteration of an existing
building, or part of an existing building, unless the BCA is satisfied that, after the alteration, the
building will
a) comply as is reasonably practicable with the provisions of the building code that relate to
i. means of escape from fire; AND
i. access and facilities for persons with disabilities (if this is a requirement in terms of

5.118); AND
b}

i. if it complied with the other provisions of the Building Co before t
building work began, continue to comply with those provi

ii. if it did not comply with the other provisions of the Buildi C immediatel oF
the building work began, continue to comply at least to th
comply

Section 112.2

Despite subsection (1), a territorial authority (TA)
allow the alteration of an existing building, or pa
provisions of the Building Code specified byl
a) if the building work were required to

the alteration would not take platgs,

ii. means of escapé fic

iv.
c) the improvem in parag byoutweigh any detriment that is likely to arise as
of complying hiecelevant provisions of the Building Code
An alteratio .dny blilding wo rect, repair, enlarge or extend the building. For

ta. te<poild,
%er must consider all of the building, not just the new
Council. ‘

ent for aeans of escape from fire — refer next section, access and facilities
s comply as near as is reasonably practicable. Other code clauses
ey did before the alteration for s.112 (1).

The info n collected is best summarised in a table (gap analysis), which must describe existing
featu ding; current code requirements; and options to upgrade the level of compliance
{ i§7a deficiency). The emphasis should be on upgrading the means of escape from fire
ss Hnd facilities rather than finding reasons not to upgrade.

work does not need a building consent then there is no need to consider s.112; however, if a
ilding consent is required the assessment should be rigorous and thorough.

All new building work must fully comply with the Code.
For further guidance, refer to
. Practice Note AC2226 s.112 and applying the term as near as reasonably practicable to

existing buildings on our website; or ;
+  the Ministry of Business Innovation and Employment’s website www.mbie.govt.nz
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Assessment of the Means of Escape from Fire for Existing Buildings

When an alteration to an existing building, change of use or subdivision is proposed, an assessment of
the means of escape from fire for the existing building must be performed.

Council has adopted guidance information published by MBIE entitled ‘Requesting Information about
Means of Escape from Fire’. This guidance provides the approach for assessing the Means of Escape
from Fire for existing buildings. It includes a mechanism for recommending the level of assessment a
building requires; it is an analysis of the risk associated with the building to determine the shape and

form of the assessment.
Score Risk profile | Type of assessment mxj\ée\\\y @

0-11 Low Statement of prost;/\Q:Ra{ﬁe\)

12-19 Medium Gapanalysis\
20+ High

ent

rt alterations and fit outs,

Assessment’ may be necessary to establish th "{ , comoli , 4; g achieves when
NTIENTS o’ DDY)
he*current buildings levels of

where it can be shown that the proposed
compliance. Base buildmg assessment,

Once the building h

with C1-C6. Ideally
provide suffici i
Not
sessmentd
Q addition to-the reguire
compliange o
s Alln d
s

,116 and 116 of the Building Act require that the certain provisions of the building code are

ﬂ WR_J0 comply on an ‘as nearly as is reasonably practicable’ basis also known as ANARP. Council
Pragtice Note AC2226 has been developed to provide a clear understanding of the application of s.112

~ofthe Building Act 2004 and in particular how to apply the term reasonable and practicable. Council
advice can also be sought for specific applications as part of a pre-application meeting.

ASSESSMENT undertaken prior to carrying out work on a building

An owner may choose to get an assessment of their building, well before any building work is proposed.
This provides the owner with information to support them in making a decision at to whether their
building needs to be upgraded or not and will be alerted to any potential risks or issues.
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A copy of the assessment may be placed on Coungcil's property file for future reference. Building consent
may also be applied for if the assessment is to be relied upon for future consent applications and for
example it is to be treated as the ‘base building’ fire report.

if as a result of the assessment, the building is identified as being dangerous, Council will issue a notice
under s.124 of the Building Act. :

Sites with multiple buildings
Where new building work is proposed on a single building, which is part of a group of buildings, the
assessment is only required on the building, which is the subject of the new building ; for example:

s  Agymnasium is being altered in a school, the building assessment / firg

 fehort only needs to
pestanding and n

relate to the gymnasium (in this scenario, the gymnasium mustQ€
attached to other buildings or linked to specified systems withi '

[P T3

The designer must establish whether any specified systems (within exis

into other buildings in the complex. If this is the case, informatio hese specified systems mustb
included as part of the assessment. @

Nty
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Section 115 Change of Use

Every building or part of a building has a ‘use’ that has been categorised by law. For the purposes of
the application of s.115 of the Building Act, that use is specified in Schedule 2 of the Building (Specified
Systems, Change the Use, and Earthquake-prone Buildings) Regulations 2005 (the Regulations).

Schedule 2 describes the uses for all or parts of buildings into four broad activity groups:
crowd activities
sleeping activities

. working, business or storage activities, and
» intermittent activities @

A change of use occurs when: %
» abuilding's (or pant of a building's) use, as defined in the Reg s,'cRariges from o
{(the old use) to another (the new use), and ‘Qﬁ
» the new use has more onerous or additional Building C quirements than % SeL
To demonstrate compliance with s.115 of the Building Act 20 ssment of escape
from fire for the whole of the building must be provided. @ A
ofl i

In addition to the means of escape from fire, p 0 er prope) a ilities, structural
performance and fire-rating performance mu essed to a ras.is feasonably practicable.
The requirements for building alterations t isting buildings tin s.112 of the Building Act.

115 h if both a change of use and

apply and take precedence over

* Code requirements for the new use of a building maybe more onerous than the old use if there is a greater risk to life or
the fire hazard is increased
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Schedule 1: Exemption 10 Interior non-residential alterations

Schedule 1 provides for a number of exemptions for building work that does not require a building
consent. Exemption 10 allows for non-residential buildings to be altered internally, without the need
for a building consent.

Note: a building consent is required if the proposed building work reduces compliance with the
Building Code of the following aspects.
e  Means of escape from fire
Protection of other property
Sanitary facilities
Structural performance
Fire-rating performance
Access and facilities for people with disabilities: or
Modifying or affecting any specified systems

® ® ¢ & » e

An owner may choose to put a record of the exempt work ¢
o [f an owner chooses to put a record of exemp!

tained by the owner as a

'g edging a
3) application fo
record of Council receivi
* Detailed plans shou jory
At present, there is vi% idatfce availablete s to what constitutes minor work, we are

therefore reliant o rmation® pybfishad
consent is requi ing work, yith the Building Code.

e a buildin t s not required:-

rofa reta% es to do an internal fit out that includes new linings and
e
ms

, s, shelving, clo cks and simple low partitions. The escape routes are not
uced (e.g., | op aths stay the same) and the building work does not affect any
iy existing s
. A ndergoes an alteration that includes redecorating and new seating areas. The
dogd. hot affect escape routes (e.g., total open paths stay the same) and the building
s not affect any existing specified systems.

Installing a window in a non-load bearing partition between a factory storage room and

hallway to allow natural light into the hallway
° Replacing linings and finishes within a retail shop where the work does not affect

compliance with any fire-rating requirements and surface finishes comply with the Building
Code

S Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment. GUIDANCE; Building work that does not require a buliding consent. .
Third edition 2014
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. Removing a sink and a wash hand basin from a disused cleaners’ cupboard in a shopping
complex, where the removal of the hand basin does not reduce compliance with Building
Code provisions relating to sanitary facilities, as other fully complying facilities are available
nearby in the complex.

e Any alteration work to sanitary plumbing must be carried out in accordance with the
Plumbers, Gasfitters, and Drainlayers Act 2006

Installing new walls and partitions (even non-load bearing ones) close to sprinkler heads may reduce
the effectiveness and compliance of the sprinklers, which are part of a specified system. Installing

new walls or partitions may also increase total open paths. Work of this natu Il necessitate a
building consent; however, where the work is considered to be relatively mi e is provision
under Schedule 1 clause 2 for Council to grant an exemption (refer next section
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Schedule 1: Exemption 2 ,

Exemption 2 provides Council with the ability to exempt building work from the requirement for a
building consent.

If an owner wishes to apply for an exemption, they should use application form AC2119 Application fo
request an exemption under exemption 2 of Schedule 1 of the Building Act. The same level of
information required for a building consent is required in support of the application together with the
justification for seeking an exemption.

. a statement from an approved fire engineer must be provided confirmipgthat the building
work has no effect or does not reduce the compliance of any exis fety features
together with a list of fire safety features and what will change % the buildi
work

. if an exemption is granted, an assessment of s.112 is not r

Council will review the application and grant or refuse the r ﬁ rdingly; a depgsi payg%
lodgement. The full cost of reviewing and determining wh ption is via d on an
€5:

hourly rate. Please refer to the fee schedule for furth<:> iprr-dbout fees @
sidered® %

Examples of situations where an exemp
. A shop within a mall is changing h e new tenantwants Yo install a new shop front,
shelving and partitions. Th et of the shop frohp>involves a structural design for
' B fructure of the existing building
ered professional engineer who

ment within the last three years, which was
, and additional offices are required within the

reconfiguring three of the existing offices to create five
er Dl i new walls will have an impact on the location of sprinkler
which will need\fo b moved / replaced; the work on the system does not affect flow

% and has % egress routes

* There is guidance available at http:/fiwww.building.govt.nz/UserFiles/File/Publications/Building/T echnical-reviews/2012-
wellingtan-technical-review.pdf
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New Zealand Fire Service (NZFS)

The NZFS have two roles where fire designs are involved; firstly, they are a stakeholder in the Fire
engineering brief (FEB) process and secondly Council are required to send NZFS certain applications
for their comment if they so choose under s.47 of the Building Act 2004. The Fire Service also
approve aspects of the design in respect of fire fighting facilities and as such should be consulted
prior to consent stage where approval is required for any fire fighting facilities to be provided.

1. FEB process - engineers@fire.org.nz

NZFS provide feedback on ,
s the content of the FEB; and
» the suitability of fire fighting facilities
The table below summarises the application types that require input ﬁ%@ S N

Application type Acceptable Solutions %’? O Spec{.qc de‘.s\@b
New buildi N (@éﬁ( b
Hieing ° r@p L~ A\

Alteration to existing buildi /\\ Yes
ration to existing building No A<<W Input f,\( \
5

Change of use & % p€<<\g\;\:jf/
g No RS > FEB In \g\\
Subdivision B %Qm Yes
L5

i

?@Checkﬁst be completed as
S website’.

As part of the FEB process

t'he sent to NZFS.

ew these applications and provide a memorandum to the
-working day statutory timeframe that the BCA has to process
o expedite this process, the Fire Engineer responsible for the fire

its within
ildi nsent.
i if the building is required to be reviewed by the FEU.
con

sent must be submitted to- the NZFS when both Criteria 1 and Criteria 2

Designs for build

below
i A 1+ Building type
ng$ (or parts of buildings) used for:

gathering together of 100 or more people (for any purpose)

employment for 10 or more people

accommodation for 6 or more people (other than in 3 or fewer household units)
hazardous substances in quantities exceeding prescribed minimum amounts
early childhood facilities

nursing, medical, or geriatric care

specialised care for persons with disabilities

lawful detention of people (not home or community detention)

® ¢ o * 9 e @

" http://fire.org.nz/business-fire-safety/building-design/pages/building-act-2004.html
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The following buildings are excluded:

crown buildings that are specified by the Minister in the Gazette

premises of diplomatic missions

single household units .

buildings in which every fire-cell is a household unit separated vertically from the other fire-
cells, and each fire-cell has independent and direct egress to a safe place outside the building
e an intemnal fit-out, unless the fit-out relates to a change of use outbuildings or ancillary

buildings ,
'GRITERIA 2 - Designs / building work type @

o Designs for new buildings using altemative solutions (not us n ble Solufi
Verification Method) to comply with any of the following Buildi atises:
e C1-C6 Protection from Fire (or C1-C4 Fire Safe 9 ApriL.2013)
e D1 Access routes
¢ FB Visibility in escape routes
e F8 Signs, or :
¢ When waivers or modifications to any of h ’ uired, or
o Alterations, change of use or subdivisf on fire safety
systems
Example

o Criteria 1 + Criteria2 =

St be sent to the NZFS (refer to the Ministry

The table below sum plication ‘
ontrols Update #132 for a more detailed

of Business Inn 0 ployment’
explanation) &
~ N
W%QEQ W\) &Wuﬁons CINM2 Specific design
, & O

) ﬂ%ﬂ@ﬁg/ A NY® N No Yes

N Qgﬁbﬁfto existing W? . ‘ Yes

.} Only if the design has Orily if the design has
(}{ange of u7e?\\\>/v more than a minor effect | more than a minor effect Yes
: on a fire safety system on a fire safety system -

Subdi WV Yes
S

ouncil may also, at their discretion, seek NZFS input as part of the Consent review process.

8 The reference to an alteration in Item 1(c) of the Gazette Notice means that building consent applications for alterations
that effect fire safety systems must be reviewed by the NZFS :
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Risk Groups and Uses
Risk groups in C/AS1-7 of the Protection from Fire clauses are used to establish risk in terms of fire
safety measures; they only apply to the Acceptable Solutions.

Risk group | Description

SH Houses and multi-unit dwellings with no more than one unit above another
SM Other residences and accommodation
S Places of care or detention
CA Places where people undertake activities other than working ~, B\\%
WB Places where people work / { < - A {ﬁ

WS Places where people work with higher risk / storage. v

N\ DS
VP Places for cars, trucks, boats efc. A {Q )\ ;\Q\ \{
SN

-t

8 Recymed; they are in
Kiy Prone Building)

Uses relate to the use(s) of the building and whel
Schedule 2 of the Building (Specified Systems,. &
Regulations 2005.

PO
Use Description \8 ) i C‘Q\ \\y}\)
cs Crowd small < ™\ AN
oL | crowsGe, \\/ COLNY
co | clokdoper 72NN
CM (: S ércantile (/{i \\\_) /)
3\6@ eeping care A%\ (
?Q\sc\ A Sleeping de{te\i\i(v\%\}
D W Sleeping ac&;(nqr&aﬁon

QLN sR | sleepioyregidential
~ SH O\ | ‘Sipuidhotsenold
V{If \%king low

/?\W “Working medium
\:’? WE’ Working high

- < o WF Working fast
IA Intermittent activity {low)
- D intermittent activity (medium)

o
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Building Consent Documentation

The standard and quality of documentation must be in accordance with Practice Note 22
published by the Institution of Professional Engineers (IPENZ) and the Ministry of Business
innovation and Employment (MBIE), as guidance under s.175 of the Building Act 2004.

The design team usually coordinates the various design disciplines involved. As fire engineering
overlaps so many other disciplines, the fire engineer may review associated documentation, to
ensure that it reflects the requirements of the fire design, before the application for building consent is
submitted: however, there is no expectation that the fire engineer signs off on other trades

requirements or inputs.
Note: | ' @

o The reviewer does not assume responsibility for the design g involved but
responsible for verifying that the intent of the design has been ivie %
(ar) the

tly improve ,Counicil
ss and
y icated and

Producing quality documentation for building consent w o
reviewer's) ability to process the application for building
efficient process (time and cost). Fire safety

incorporated into the final design documentation s

Practice Note 22 describes the type a
requirements, how to communicate these
extent of information required to suppo
the designers and their responsibi

The Practice Note also p of.des
emphasis on graphica ication, rather fhe '
Detailed floor pla st.agcompany rts |
including e any lifts servin: .
%%h to C6 a @ (where applicable) shall be provided for all C/VM2 and

to declare tha erall fire design demonstrates compliance with the Building

rov'\ M in accordance with the Auckland Council's Producer Statement

all the stakeholders and Council.

0 puter Modelling

Only a person specialising in fire and listed on the Auckland Council Approved Producer Statement

" Register can issue producer statements for acceptance by Council. The computer mode! shall be
analysed appropriately for the design by the design engineer; it is not the role of the peer reviewer to
perform the analysis. Hard copies of the input files for fire modelling must be included with consent
documentation. ‘

For B-Risk simulations a hard copy of the results file must be included with consent documentation.
The simulation settings must ensure that all inputs are reflected in this file. Smokeview files showing
the modelling geometry and graphs indicating smoke layer heights and other important results should
be included within the report write-up to support the analysis and conclusions made.
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For CFD/FDS simulations a hard copy of the input and output files i.e. the .FDS file, the .OUT output
files (sans Run Time Diagnostics) and HRR excel files must be included with consent documentation.
Electronic input and all output files are also to be provided for each analysis to support an external
review should that be required. Files provided on a USB drive or similar media can be accepted by
Council at the time of lodgement. This can be discussed during the FEB process.

The documentation submitted should be sufficient to allow a regulatory reviewer and third party to
fully understand the modelling undertaken and enable them to review the input and output sufficiently
to confirm the assessment methodology and the resuits meet the requireménts of the Fire
Engineering Brief.

Note:

For CFDIFDS simulations it is not acceptable to use important input rong'pther calcula
methods on which to base the final — for consent assessment. |. use PETool to calcu
Sprinkler activation and base the prescribed Heat Release R the mode! will no
accepted.

<®
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Peer Reviews
Auckiand Council's Producer Statement Policy must be read in conjunction with this policy if
producer statements are offered as part of the design process.

A peer review is regarded by Auckland Council as a regulatory review carried out by a design
professional on a designers work; a producer statement design review (PS2) is issued on completion.
The applicant nominates the peer reviewer prior to the application being submitted for consent.

Producer statements are not specifically referred to in the Building Act 2004. However, ihey can be
considered as part of the building consent process, in terms of giving Council ble grounds to
be satisfied that the building work complies with the Building Code and pm@ t and co

effective service to clients.
If the peer reviewer is on the Auckland Council Producer Statement Register, ouncil w

ill a
PS2 in good faith and is completely reliant on it when procesgjr consent applicatiok,*{o establis

compliance with the Building Code. Apart from checking ors' details, the
producer statement and level of insurance, limited ched! y rless the
application is selected for audit, is considered highx er reviewer
shall not have any direct involvement or financial initial design.

otincil reserves the right

The acceptance of a producer statement is
ncy is maintained in the

to perform additional reviews of the info

gupancies in multi-storey buildings and has a different
-risk design work is subject to either a peer review

F C ‘s ‘ . ‘ q' ?
{ ry review; the d x sfo which option is agreeable and who performs this role is at
j)» il. Thig yeti

% ision is typically made before the FEB process is started and

S cts include:

are not designed in accordance with a compliance document (C/ASX or CIVM2)
led sleeping accommodation in buildings with more than 4 stories

leePing accommodation having only a single means of escape with more than 4 stories (non
ASX design)

' Fire cells with more than 1000 occupants
7 / Non sprinkled buildings with large occupancies more than 500 occupants

Buildings containing significant quantities of Hazardous Goods
Buildings with an Importance level of 4 and §

L ]

* All buildings exceeding 20 storeys in height
e Shopping centres/Malls

» Stadia

+ Transportation

L

L J
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Regulatory Review

At the time of submitting a building consent, if Council does not have the in-house capacity to assess
an application or a PS2 has NOT been provided by a suitably qualified and approved fire engineer,
Council may choose to engage the services of such a person to conduct the review on its behalf,

The purpose of a regulatory review® is to assess whether the design complies with relevant

regulations, consent requirements and legislative requirements. The reviewer does not assess the
design objectives, process, options, assumptions or method, only the submitted design and tests the

outcome against regulatory parameters.
jewer may asl
designer a
im&%
vol in

There is no direct relationship between the reviewer and the designer, althoug
the designer questions about inconsistencies in the work. Communicatio
the reviewer is important.

The reviewer's role is to identify areas of the design that 0
designer to resolve them to the reviewer's satisfaction.
e

resolving the issues. This allows the designer to comme eport is
submitted.

if the review is conducted during the consen tage, Co the costs from
the building consent applicant in the norma

High-level overview of the design an it approval E’

prior to

Application for
" building consent !

v
' Conduct
i regulatory review i
{

- FEB process if

| < PS2provided? > - NO
| CNM2or SD

YES ‘

5 S A

. Check author on gt

| register, content and I < ?:::g::b?: -

- format of statement | - orounds?.

‘and insurance levels | I L
YES NO-

All building consents are subject to audits as part of Councils L AN ) P T i
| Request further

Quality Assurance system; this includes the review of producer ! !
statements | SignoffC1-C6 . informationor |
‘ refuse consent

i

® An independent reviewer maybe engaged by Council to carry out the design review. Please refer to the Auckland Council
Producer Statement Palicy for further information
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Construction Monitoring

Appropriate levels of construction monitoring are necessary to provide confidence to Council that the
design engineer, or their representative, has actively monitored and observed the building being
constructed in accordance with their design expectations and also to confirm that the building will
operate as required in accordance with the consented fire design.

The extent and scope of construction monitoring to be undertaken shall be agreed as part of the Fire

Engineering Brief process and confirmed within the documentation submitted for consent approval. A

PS4 shall be provided to support Code Compliance Certification of the building and {9.sonfirm that

the design meets the designer's requirements for fire for all C/VM2 and speci ﬁ,w

IPENZ/ACENZ Guidance on Construction Monitoring Services'® provides % setd
&

various levels of construction monitoring that may be appropriate for e
a more detailed description and agreed level of scope may be necessary
also to IPENZ PN22 for further information.

proposed. For Acceptable Solution desigh
designer propose a level of con

Where no discussion of con nitoring is p
Council may require a spe nstructio
Certificat i@tlse

nthe consent documentation the
part of the approvals process.

O
If the buildif occupied b before the Code Compliance Certificate is issued, there
plication for Public Use. The management procedures
is certificate included in the consent application and reviewed by the Peer

o

% https://www.ipenz.org.nz/ipenz/forms/pdfs Construction_Monitoring Services.pdf
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Fire Design Review Process
In this section, reviewer means both the peer reviewer and regulatory reviewer.

The reviewer must:
+ comply with both this policy and the Auckland Council's Producer Statement policy
not perform any design work which is the subject of the review
o document all requests for additional information in writing and submit these to Council
together with any supplementary documentation received during the review
» consider all relevant New Zealand Building Code clauses; i.e. D1, 7 and F8 (as
applicable to the C clauses)

» consider any legislative requirements; i.e. sections 67, 112, 115 or 148

» confirmation that the fire safety features or specified syste ’ the complian
schedule including any inspection and maintenance pmced@e ithin the fi
are correct

» consider whether it is appropriate for the fire enging rovide a
producer statement construction review on complefioR K,
o the scope of construction monitoring afjd-z ide” a pry r statement

construction review must be reach

Before completing the review, the revie it i i essional opinion in
respect to
* any request for a waiver or mod
* the assessment of what 5 &
» the New Zealand Fi

On conclusion of the ¢
verify they hold ang
summary, th (

“producer statement design review and
The reviewer must also complete a design

{he intent of the ‘f*..« has been met (if applicable)
Il correspondence ¥gviewed / received (written and verbal)
b%’\em of the review

~the information on Council's file must be complete. It must be adequate
is revisited in the future, that all decisions, reasons for decision and the
out od. For this reason communication between the various parties must be clear
a ~A schedule of questions and responses presents the most robust and common
hedglogy/for recording and closing out design review items. Long email trails and phone calls,
common form of communication do not support a transparent process and important
jons impacting the design including the reasoning behind any decisions made must be
umented in an appropriate format.
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